
 
 
 

  
 

 

 LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT      Posted: 9-28-2024 
TECHNICAL SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 

October 4, 2024 – 9:00 AM 
St Mark’s in the Valley Episcopal Church  
2901 Nojoqui Ave, Los Olivos CA 93441 

Please observe decorum and instructions from the Subcommittee Chair 
 

Subcommittee Members: Director Fayram (Chair), Director Parks, and General Manager Guy Savage 
 

This meeting will be held both in-person and electronically via Zoom Meetings. In-person the meeting will be held at the location above. 
 
The public will also be able to hear and participate electronically via Zoom by using the following links: 

Zoom:  https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81937722522?pwd=SWpSU0RYZFljZTBLNGphZG41TGs4dz09 
By Phone: +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) Meeting ID: 819 3772 2522 Passcode: 914085 
One tap mobile:  +14086380968,,81937722522#,,,,*914085# US (San Jose) 

 
The Los Olivos Community Services District is committed to ensuring equal access to meetings. In compliance with the American  

Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in the meeting or need this agenda provided in a disability-related alternative 
format, please call 805.500.4098 or email to losolivoscsd@gmail.com. Any public records, which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to 
this meeting to all, or a majority of all, of the District’s Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than closed sessions) will 

be available for public inspection at the time of such distribution at a location to be determined in Los Olivos, California 93441. 
 

 
 

MEETING AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Members of the public may address the Subcommittee on any items of interest within the subject matter and 
jurisdiction of the Board but not on the agenda today (Gov. Code - 54954.3). The public may also request future 
agenda topics at this time. Speakers are limited to a maximum of 3 minutes. Due to the requirements of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act, the Subcommittee cannot take action today on any matter not on the agenda, but a matter raised 
during Public Comments can be referred to District staff for discussion and possible action at a future meeting. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS: 
All matters listed hereunder constitute an administrative / consent agenda and will be acted upon by a single vote of 
the Board. Matters listed on the Consent Agenda will be read only on the request of a member of the Subcommittee, 
in which event the matter may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered as a separate item. Public may 
comment on any of the items prior to the vote being taken by the Subcommittee. 
4. CONSENT AGENDA  

A. MINUTES APPROVAL 
Approval of the minutes from August 21, 2024. 

 
BUSINESS ITEMS: 
All matters listed hereunder will be acted upon separately and public comment will be held for each item. As a 
Subcommittee of the full Board of Directors, Business Items may include one or more recommendations for further 
discussion or action at a full Board of Directors meeting. 
 

  
Julie Kennedy, President 
Lisa Palmer, Vice President 
Tom Fayram, Director 
Greg Parks, Director 
Nina Stormo, Director 

1

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81937722522?pwd=SWpSU0RYZFljZTBLNGphZG41TGs4dz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81937722522?pwd=SWpSU0RYZFljZTBLNGphZG41TGs4dz09


5. CONSIDERATION OF TWO CONTRACTS THAT WOULD CREATE A WASTEWATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE 
BETWEEN THE LOCSD AND THE CITY OF SOLVANG. CONTRACT #1 – STANTEC IN THE AMOUNT OF $99,500 
(NINETY-NINE THOUSAND AND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS) AND CONTRACT #2 – REGEN IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$50,000 (FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS) 
The Subcommittee will consider making a recommendation to the full Board of Directors regarding the two 
submitted proposals for the creation of 30% engineering and design, plus costs for connecting the District to the 
City of Solvang. For the purposes of the contractor’s proposals, they were instructed to estimate the roughly the 
18,000 feet of distance involved. They were also instructed, pursuant to discussions with the City of Solvang, to 
include an equalization tank. Flows from the District were to be consistent with the Basis of Design documents 
each contractor used when creating their 30% engineering designs and based on the technology approach used. 
Stantec’s proposal therefore assumes a gravity fed collection system, while REGEN’s proposal focuses more 
heavily on effluent sewer collecction.  
 

6. DISCUSSION REGARDING POSSIBLE LOCSD CONNECTION TO THE CITY OF SOLVANG’S WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT AND RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE, INCLUDING WSC AND CAROLLO CONTRACTED EFFORTS  
The Subcommittee will discuss potential connection to the City of Solvang, including technical issues raised by 
connection, requests from the two contractors who the LOCSD has engaged to perform studies related to the 
connection. 
 

7. GENERAL DISCUSSION OF COLLECTION, TREATMENT, AND DISPOSAL OPTIONS 
The Subcommittee will discuss options for the collection, treatment, and disposal of wastewater for the District. 
Given the Regen contract, this discussion will focus heavily on Treatment options, including Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR), connection to Solvang’s treatment plant, and other solutions previously brought up by members of the 
public. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

2

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


 

 

 

 

 

 

M
IN

U
TES

 
ITEM 4A – MINUTES 

3



 
 
 

  
 

 

 LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT      Posted: 8-15-2024 
TECHNICAL SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 

August 21, 2024 – 2:30 PM 
Lefty’s Coffee Company 

2896 San Marcos Ave, Los Olivos, CA 93441 
Please observe decorum and instructions from the Subcommittee Chair 

 
Subcommittee Members: Director Fayram (Chair), Directors Parks, and General Manager Guy Savage 

 
Due to the limitations of this location, this meeting of the Los Olivos Technical Subcommittee will only be held in person. 

We apologize to any who had hoped to view the meeting or subsequent recording via Zoom. 
 

The Los Olivos Community Services District is committed to ensuring equal access to meetings. In compliance with the American  
Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in the meeting or need this agenda provided in a disability-related alternative 
format, please call 805.500.4098 or email to losolivoscsd@gmail.com. Any public records, which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to 
this meeting to all, or a majority of all, of the District’s Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than closed sessions) will 

be available for public inspection at the time of such distribution at a location to be determined in Los Olivos, California 93441. 
 

 
 

MEETING AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Director Fayram called the meeting to order at 301 PM. 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Director Fayram requests a roll call be taken. 
PRESENT: Director (Chair) Fayram, Director Parks, GM Savage 
ABSENT: None 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Members of the public may address the Subcommittee on any items of interest within the subject matter and 
jurisdiction of the Board but not on the agenda today (Gov. Code - 54954.3). The public may also request future 
agenda topics at this time. Speakers are limited to a maximum of 3 minutes. Due to the requirements of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act, the Subcommittee cannot take action today on any matter not on the agenda, but a matter raised 
during Public Comments can be referred to District staff for discussion and possible action at a future meeting. 
Chair Fayram opens the floor to public comment. 
No requests to speak. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS: 
All matters listed hereunder constitute an administrative / consent agenda and will be acted upon by a single vote of 
the Board. Matters listed on the Consent Agenda will be read only on the request of a member of the Subcommittee, 
in which event the matter may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered as a separate item. Public may 
comment on any of the items prior to the vote being taken by the Subcommittee. 
4. CONSENT AGENDA  

A. MINUTES APPROVAL 
Approval of the minutes from July 30, 2024. 
Chair Fayram opens the floor to public comment. 
No requests to speak. 
 

  
Julie Kennedy, President 
Lisa Palmer, Vice President 
Tom Fayram, Director 
Greg Parks, Director 
Nina Stormo, Director 

4

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


Motion to approve the consent agenda. 
Motion by: Director Parks, Second: Chair Fayram. 
Voice vote: 3-0 

 
BUSINESS ITEMS: 
All matters listed hereunder will be acted upon separately and public comment will be held for each item. As a 
Subcommittee of the full Board of Directors, Business Items may include one or more recommendations for further 
discussion or action at a full Board of Directors meeting. 
 
5. DISCUSSION OF TREATMENT OPTIONS WITH REGEN LLC. 

The Subcommittee will welcome Tristian Bounds from REGEN, LLC. to the meeting. The group will then discuss 
treatment options, with a focus on treating waste from effluent collection systems. 
Chair Fayram asks GM Savage if there is any special introduction. GM Savage responding that there is nothing special, 
thanks Mr. Tristian Bounds for attending, and notes that there was no particular preparation that Mr. Bounds was 
asked to complete. Chair Fayram notes that he has several questions for Mr. Bounds and comments about prior 
meetings with the RWQCB. He adds that he believes the options at this point for treatment are either a local plant or 
connecting to the City of Solvang. Chair Fayram comments on violations by both Mattei’s Tavern and Dunn School. 
He adds that the RWQCB will set “goals for the District to meet“ but not necessarily tell the District how to meet 
them. He then moves to general comments about complexities of managing a local plant. 
Mr. Bounds responds to the Chair’s commentary. He says that the District has a variety of options. He then talks 
about disposal, as it will directly affect the options available to the District for treatment. His discussion includes 
commentary on Direct Discharge (DD), Reuse, and Subsurface Dispersal (SD). Mr. Bounds comments that when you 
have lower flows, SD is appropriate. With higher flows, you need to look at the other options. He adds that 
Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) systems tend to set a District up for Reuse and DD. GM Savage asks Mr. Bounds his 
opinion of the volumes the LOCSD will produce as it relates to his disposal. Mr. Bounds responds that the LOCSD is a 
low to medium volume flow. He adds that Reuse has the highest likelihood of obtaining grants. He then shifts to 
discussion about treatment. Mr. Bounds comments that high treatment scenarios require highly skilled operators – 
the more complex the process, the higher skill and “classification“ (aka experience) of operator required. Mr. Bounds 
then moves to commentary about National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits to discharge into 
a waterway, such as a stream, which are managed at the Federal level. He comments that for large projects pursuing 
a NPDES permit may make sense. District Engineer Pike comments that he continues to work on the Water Resource 
Fund (WRF) grant obtained by the District. He says that in the grant report, Reuse is a key focus. 
 
The discussion then turns to the difference between secondary and tertiary treatment. Mr. Bounds comments that 
moving to water tertiary treatment is essentially a requirement to support Reuse. He then adds that phasing of a 
community wastewater treatment solution will impact the potential for Reuse. He challenges the District to ask itself 
what is most beneficial, and semi-rhetorically adds, “phasing or complete implementation“ as it will affect the 
decision regarding disposal. DE Pike reminds attendees that to get to a decision about treatment, you must consider 
the type of disposal desired. Mr. Bounds agrees and comments that in his opinion 100% of all future permits will 
require some beneficial reuse component. He then adds that the cost of land plus a system for SD may not be 
economically feasible given the space required. The discussion then shifts to storage requirements. 
 
Director Parks confirms with Mr. Bounds that collection is independent from treatment, whereas disposal is directly 
tied to treatment considerations. As part of his response confirming the ties, Mr. Bounds adds that there more is 
funding available for reuse. Director Parks then asks about how far you can pipe treated wastewater for reuse? Mr. 
Bounds and Chair Fayram both respond it is a case of money and economic feasibility. Mr. Bounds adds that the cost 
for purple pipe reuse is too high in California. The discussion then turns to other systems in use in the LOCSD region. 
Director Parks then asks about what is done with treated wastewater during truly wet seasons and events. Mr. 
Bounds and Chair Fayram respond that the treated water needs to be stored, perhaps in a pond. 
 
Chair Fayram opens the floor to public comment. 
No requests to speak. 
 

6. DISCUSSION REGARDING POSSIBLE LOCSD CONNECTION TO THE CITY OF SOLVANG’S WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT AND RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE, INCLUDING WSC AND CAROLLO CONTRACTED EFFORTS  
The Subcommittee will discuss potential connection to the City of Solvang, including technical issues raised by 

5

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


connection, requests from the two contractors who the LOCSD has engaged to perform studies related to the 
connection. 
GM Savage opens the conversation noting that both WSC and Carollo appear to be on-target for November 
deliveries. Attendees then discuss the costs of connecting to the City of Solvang, with Mr. Bounds commenting 
that there are costs for connection, new pipe, and capacity fees. DE Pike comments that flow rates might impact 
the decision and costs related to connecting to Solvang. Mr. Bounds and DE Pike have a conversation about 
transmission pipes from LOCSD to Solvang, confirming that the pipe itself is always “full” but that the pressure 
pushing waste down the line varies. They concur that a booster station will likely be needed for a gravity system 
given the distances involved. 
 
Chair Fayram opens the floor to public comment. 
No requests to speak. 
 

7. GENERAL DISCUSSION OF COLLECTION, TREATMENT, AND DISPOSAL OPTIONS 
The Subcommittee will discuss options for the collection, treatment, and disposal of wastewater for the District. 
Given the Regen contract, this discussion will focus heavily on Treatment options, including Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR), connection to Solvang’s treatment plant, and other solutions previously brought up by members of the 
public. 
GM Savage introduces a memo from DE Pike on Peak Flow Factors (PFFs). He hands out copies to everyone in 
attendance and confirms he will post it to the meeting page after the meeting concludes. Mr. Bounds and DE Pike 
lead a conversation about PFFs. Mr. Bounds comments that PFF for gravity collection are regularly higher, 
perhaps around 4, whereas an effluent collection system has a lower PFF, perhaps around 2. He comments that 
with welded HDPE type pipe, a PFF of 2.5 for gravity fed systems might be okay. 
 
GM Savage comments that he doesn’t see getting a “final” answer on PFFs is needed today. But, has raised the 
issue here as it will be needed when the District pursues a 60% design. He adds that engineers, himself included, 
are often very conservative when it comes to such things and suggests that getting local and/or similar system 
data will be helpful. DE Pike comments that the effort is probably in the $15,000 ballpark. 
 
Chair Fayram opens the floor to public comment. 
No requests to speak. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn at: 3:43 PM 
Motion by Chair Fayram, second: Director Parks 
Voice vote 3-0 
 
Respectfully submitted: 

 
Guy W. Savage 
General Manager – Los Olivos Community Services District 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Director (Chair) Tom Fayram 
 

6

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


 

 

 

 

 

 

C
ITY

 O
F SO

LV
A

N
G

 TR
A

N
SM

ISSIO
N

 LIN
E C

O
N

TR
A

C
TS 

 

ITEM 5 – CITY OF SOLVANG TRANSMISSION LINE 

CONTRACTS 

7



September 6, 2024 

Project/File: 184031368 

Mr. Guy Savage 

General Manager 

Los Olivos Community Services District  

P.O. Box 345 

Los Olivos, CA 93441 

Dear Mr. Guy Savage, 

Reference: Request for Proposal – 30% Design for LOCSD Connection to City of Solvang  

Los Olivos Community Services District has requested a proposal including scope and budget for the 
Preliminary Design Services for the wastewater connection from the southern LOCSD point to the City of 
Solvang’s wastewater infrastructure.  

Project Understanding 

In 2022, Stantec developed Task Order No. 1 – Loading study and Task Order No. 2 – Feasibility Study 
and Preliminary Design (design plans). Task No. 1 provided estimated flows from existing to buildout for the 
community of Los Olivos. Task No. 2 involved preliminary design for the collection and treatment system for 
the community of Los Olivos. The design included septic to sewer conversions of multiple lots in the Special 
Problems Area of Los Olivos including a gravity wastewater collection system to convey untreated 
wastewater to a centralized wastewater treatment facility sited at various locations. The sewer shed for the 
community of Los Olivos’ collection system, as shown on the design plans, terminated at a sewer lift station 
(LOCSD LS) located at the intersection of Alamo Pintado Road and Santa Barbara Avenue in the 
community of Los Olivos.  

As an alternative to the centralized wastewater treatment facility, owned and operated by LOCSD, the 
scope of this proposal will design a sewer lift station and sewer force main to connect from LOCSD to the 
City of Solvang’s wastewater collection system for treatment and disposal at the Solvang’s Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP). The proposed point of connection (POC) to the City of Solvang is assumed to be 
an existing sewer manhole located near the intersection of Ladan Drive and Alamo Pintado Road across 
from Sunny Fields Park, as shown Figure 1 below. The POC will need to be confirmed as part of our scope 
of work. The estimated sewer force main length from LOCSD LS to connection point with the City of 
Solvang is approximately 18,000 feet or 3.4 miles. 

There have been multiple studies done regarding annexing communities such as Los Olivos into the City of 
Solvang wastewater system. One such study, Los Olivos Wastewater System Preliminary Engineering 
Report developed by AECOM in 2013, stated that a connection to Solvang would go against the Santa 
Ynez Valley Community Plan because wastewater connections between jurisdictional agencies is growth 
inducing. The study estimated costs for a connection to Solvang around $13.1 million. 

8



Figure 1:  POC and Force Main Alignment 

 

According to the 2021 Sewer Master Plan, the City of Solvang’s wastewater collection system consists of 
31 miles of gravity sewer mains and two sewer lift stations that provide wastewater services for 10,230 
customers. The wastewater is conveyed to Solvang’s WWTP via the Fjord sewer lift station and sewer force 
main below the Santa Ynez River. Further investigation of Solvang’s collection system including the Fjord 
sewer lift station is included in our scope.  

This proposal assumes the following: 

• Approval from the Santa Ynez Valley Board of Supervisor and Local Agency Formation will be 
required for a wastewater connection to the City of Solvang. This will be addressed by LOCSD 
after completion of this scope and deliverables, which can be used for negotiations. 

9



• Memorandum of Understanding or User Agreements with Solvang will be coordinated by LOCSD. 
This can be completed chronologically independently of this 30% design.   

• LOCSD will provide City of Solvang for existing infrastructure capacity information and confirmation 
for where this 30% design should tie-in to the Solvang infrastructure. Stantec can help with 
coordination.   

• Authorization will be provided for work to begin October 1, 2024, and be substantially completed in 
2024 to avoid cost escalations starting January 2025. A start delay will require a fee adjustment to 
account for staff rates in 2025.   

Tasks and Description of Work 

We understand the following scope of work will be required for this project: 

1 Project Management 

Stantec will provide an experienced, trained project manager to lead the project and act as the key point of 
contact for the Stantec team. The project management task will include the following key sub-tasks:  

1. General project coordination and communication  

2. Management of scope, schedule, and budget to ensure project is progressing as planned.  

3. Preparation of monthly progress reports and invoices to LOCSD and participation in teleconferences 

throughout the project (including schedule and budget updates)  

4. Attend a site walk with LOCSD ahead of the preliminary design.  

5. Conduct scheduled progress meetings (kickoff meeting and review meetings at the 30% design 

stage)  

6. Coordination of internal quality control and quality assurance of the deliverable documents to the 

LOCSD  

7. Project closeout activities and final delivery and approval of the project  

Stantec will invite key staff members to participate in the kick-off and design review meetings with the 
LOCSD. We will have staff members versed in the various disciplines of public works for which this scope 
of work entails. Participation in meetings with the LOCSD will be part of the project management task.  

Deliverables (Electronic to LOCSD PM): 

• Meeting Agendas and Notes  

• Project Reports and Invoices  

• Project Schedule  

10



2 Topographical Mapping 

Aerial mapping will be performed along the sewer force main alignment in combination with conventional/ 
GPS supplemental topographical surveying. 

Aerial mapping will include, the horizontal locations of building footprints, guy wires, vaults, utility boxes, 
sidewalks, curbs, edge of asphalt, fences, walls, bridges, driveways, access roads, and vegetation. Stantec 
will provide a subcontracted aerial firm the coordinates of said aerial targets and the site will be flown by the 
subcontractor by airplane taking photos to be the basis for the site mapping. The deliverables will have 
relative site accuracy of approximately +/-0.25’ horizontally and vertically (better in open-sky, improved 
locations) prepared to National Map Accuracy Standards:  

• Topographic base map with a digital terrain model (DTM) with 1’ contours. 

• Colorized ortho-rectified aerial imagery with +/-0.25’ pixel resolution (1 pixel of the photo represents 

a 0.2’ x 0.2’ square on the ground) 

Conventional and/or GPS topographic field survey will collect surface utility features along the proposed 
sewer force main alignment, at the sewer lift station site, and at tie-in locations. Topographic surveying and 
mapping will locate pavement, curbs, driveways, walks, fences, median and parkway planters, and visible 
surface utilities (accessible sewer and storm drain manholes will be opened and the invert elevation, pipe 
size and pipe material will be noted), together with topographic features such as crowns, flow lines, grade 
breaks, etc. from back of walk to back of walk. Pavement and surface materials will also be identified, 
including bridge abutments. Trees larger than 6” in diameter (measured at chest height) will be located and 
shown on the map along with detail information such as walls, signs, surface material limits, mailboxes and 
USA markings, if available.  

Note: In areas where the topography poses a safety risk, we will interpret elevations based on available 
ground measurements. 

1. Create an AutoCAD drawing for the project base map, including surveyor’s notes and legend. The scale 

of the base map will be 1” = 40’ with a 1-foot contour interval.  

2. Mapping will be based horizontally on the California Coordinate System of 1983 (CCS83), 

NAD83(2011), epoch 2017.50, and vertically on the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD88) 

via geodetic ties to continually operating GNSS stations constraining to coordinates at said stations as 

published by the California Spatial Reference Center (CSRC). National Geodetic Survey's (NGS) 

"Geoid12B" or "Geoid18" geoid model will be interpolated and applied to computed ellipsoid heights for 

all project data to derive orthometric project heights. 

3. Locate upstream and downstream gravity utility lines beyond the topographical mapping boundary 

(storm drain and sanitary sewer) inlets/outlets and invert elevations of all crossing gravity utilities. 

Approximate size of pipe entering/exiting manhole will be noted.  

4. Establish semi-permanent survey control points (pipes with caps, magnetic nails in pavement, or 

scribed "+" in concrete) along alignment for use by contractor during construction. 

5. For this survey, the right-of-way mapping to be included with the topographic mapping will be based on 

the County Assessor’s GIS parcel lines. During the design phase, it may be determined that the 

11



accuracy of the GIS parcel lines will not be suitable for all areas. For those areas where a greater 

accuracy is needed, additional research of public records would need to be conducted to determine the 

complexity of establishing the right of way. Based on the complexity and length of area needed, a 

corresponding fee adjustment would be required. 

Deliverables: 

• Survey deliverable in AutoCAD and PDF format will be included as part of 30% design submittal.  

3 Utility Research and Base Mapping 

Stantec will perform a record search utilizing available record drawings information from utility companies in 
the area. Using the USA Dig Alert database and our contacts with the various agencies, we will request 
available as-built data, and request information on existing facilities and available future planned projects in 
the area that may potentially impact the proposed construction schedule.  

We will plot the information received to prepare the utility base map. All information received from utility 
providers will be submitted to the City for record keeping. 

Deliverables: 

• Utility information will be included as part of the 30% design submittal. 

4 Technical Memorandum 

Taking into consideration the existing capacity of the City of Solvang’s sewer infrastructure (to be provided 
by LOCSD in coordination with the City), Stantec will develop a hydraulic analysis to properly design the 
sewer wet well, pumps, and sewer force main and document equalization flow requirements from LOCSD, if 
necessary. Stantec will develop a technical memorandum to document the results of the hydraulic analysis 
and provide recommendations with presumptive power requirements for the sewer lift station. Site layout, 
wet well location and arrangement are assumed to be like the existing Task Order No. 2 30% design, 
except for flow equalization storage, if needed. New electrical, instrumentation, and controls development is 
not included in this scope. That level of detail is appropriate for subsequent design submittals.   

Deliverables: 

• Draft Technical Memorandum for review and comment. 

• Final Technical memorandum (incorporating comments) will be included as part of the 30% design 

submittal. 

5 30% Design Documents 

Stantec will prepare the 30% design drawings and a budgetary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs 
(OPCC) based on our experience and previous projects. The 30% design drawings will be conceptual in 
nature to assess the feasibility of the concept and provide information suitable for the OPCC. Stantec 

12



assumes the following sheets: (1) Title Sheet; (1) Notes Sheet; (1) Site Map and Sheet Index, (19) Plan and 
Profile Sheets; (1) Sewer Lift Station Site Plan, (1) Sewer Lift Station Piping Sections and Details, (3) Detail 
Sheets, (1) Plan Specifications sheet. The profiles will include existing gravity utilities (sewer and storm 
drain), the existing bridge locations, and the proposed force main depth to help provide information on 
construction type needed at key crossings for estimated the costs.  

The plan and profile drawings will be prepared on 24”x36” sheets with a plan scale of 1” = 40’ and a profile 
scale of 1” = 40’ horizontal and 1” = 8’ vertical. 

The design effort will include the following:  

1. Develop design base drawings using AutoCAD 2019  

2. Perform a site visit to verify all surface features on the base drawing.  

3. Develop and draft preliminary design (30%). Preliminary design includes site design of sewer lift station, 

layout of pipeline alignments, pipe material and diameter, plan and profiles, connection points, bridge 

crossing, and details.  

4. Provide QA/QC on preliminary design.  

5. Submit 30% Design Drawings and Opinion of Probable Construction Costs.  

 

We will submit draft PDF files to the LOCSD Project Manager for review of proposed alignments and tie in 

locations.  

We will meet virtually with the LOCSD project manager to discuss the LOCSD’s review and comments. The 
LOCSD will provide one set of compiled comments. All comments (agreed upon by LOCSD and Stantec) 
will be incorporated into the final submittal of the 30% design. 

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED 

The following services and all other services not specifically listed herein are excluded: 

1. Governmental and public agency map checking fees. 

2. Preparing and filing Corner Records or maps of any kind. 

3. Setting boundary or right-of-way monuments.  

4. Sub-surface utility detection or potholing services. 

5. Title Company reports, services and fees. 

6. Final construction documents.  

7. Engineering support during construction and construction administration.  

8. Construction management services (change order, pay applications, dispute management and cost 

control). 

9. Geotechnical services. 

10. Environmental services including but not limited to biological studies, noise, archeological, etc. 

Stantec is happy to provide an additional scope of work for this work if needed.  

11. County of Santa Barbara Permits. 

12. Permit preparation and/or processing.  

13. Traffic control plans. 

14. Permit fees. 

15. Services not listed herein. 

13



Proposed Fee  

Based on our understanding of your requirements and our experience with similar projects, the estimated 
not to exceed fee for this scope of services is $99,500.   

We have estimated the cost of our services based on our understanding of the scope and complexity of the 
work. During the performance of the services, the need for additional or expanded services may be 
determined, which will immediately be brought to the LOCSD’s attention. We will make every reasonable 
effort to keep you informed of our progress and costs incurred through the course of the work.  

Attached is the fee summary broken down by tasks for reference.  Stantec reserves the right to reallocate 
budget between tasks, if necessary, provided the overall total is not exceeded 

Authorization 

If you have any questions on this proposal, please give me a call at (805) 308-9158. If this proposal is 
acceptable, please sign the authorization below and I can send the Professional Services Agreement for 
your signature. The Professional Services Agreement template is attached for your review.   

Regards, 

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

 
 
 
 
Carrie Poytress P.E. 
Senior Technical Leader 
Phone: (805) 308-9158 
carrie.poytress@stantec.com 
 
 

  

14

mailto:carrie.poytress@stantec.com


By signing this proposal, Los Olivos Community Services District authorizes Stantec to proceed with the 
services herein described and the Client acknowledges that it has read and agrees to be bound by the 
attached Professional Services Terms and Conditions. 
 
This proposal is accepted and agreed on the              of                                             ,                . 

Per:  

 Client Company Name 

 

Print Name & Title 

 

Signature 
 

Day
12 

Year Month 

15



 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 

  S
en

io
r C

iv
il 

E
ng

in
ee

r 

  E
IT

 

  P
LS

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 

  P
LS

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
ur

ve
yo

r 

 2
 P

er
so

n 
C

re
w

 P
ar

ty
 

C
hi

ef
 

  2
 P

er
so

n 
C

re
w

 
C

ha
in

m
an

 

 A
er

ia
l M

ap
pi

ng
 

 E
xp

en
se

s 

 Name  Poytress, 
Carrie 

 Zukowski, 
Jonny 

 Kasman, 
Gabrielle 

 McClain, 
Ian 

 Edwards, 
Ryan 

 Gower, 
Hayden 

 Everard, 
Jesse 

 Project Billing Rate (T&M) $263 $250 $196 $231 $231 $172.50 $172.50 $1.05 $1.05
 Total Units (T&M) 30 56 144 16 40 48 48 $18,450.00 $492.86 Hours  Labour  Expense  Total 
 Total Fee (T&M) $7,890.00 $14,000.00 $28,224.00 $3,696.00 $9,240.00 $8,280.00 $8,280.00 $19,372.50 $517.50  Total 382 $79,610.00 $19,890.00 $99,500.00

 Task  Task Name  Units Hours  Labour  Expense  Total 

1 Project Management 24 492.86$  24 $6,312.00 $517.50 $6,829.50

2 Topographical Mapping 152 $29,496.00 $19,372.50 $48,868.50

2.1 Set Aerial Control Points 4 16 16 36 $6,444.00 $0.00 $6,444.00
2.2 Control & Locaton Processing 2 8 10 $2,310.00 $0.00 $2,310.00
2.3 Aerial Mapping Subconsultant 2  $ 18,450.00 2 $462.00 $19,372.50 $19,834.50
2.4 Conventional Ground Survey 4 4 $924.00 $0.00 $924.00
2.5 Survey Drafting 4 32 32 32 100 $19,356.00 $0.00 $19,356.00

3 Utility Basemapping 24 24 $4,704.00 $0.00 $4,704.00

4 Technical Memorandum 2 16 18 $4,526.00 $0.00 $4,526.00

5 30 Percent Design Documents 4 40 120 164 $34,572.00 $0.00 $34,572.00

FEE ESTIMATE - LOCSD Connection to the City of Solvang

16



SCHEDULE OF BILLING RATES – 2024  

Billing 

Level 

Hourly 

Rate 
Description 

3 

4 

5 

$128 

$135 

$152 

Junior Level position 
❑ Independently carries out assignments of limited scope using standard procedures, methods, and 

techniques  

❑ Assists senior staff in carrying out more advanced procedures  

❑ Completed work is reviewed for feasibility and soundness of judgment  

❑ Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program or equivalent  

❑ Generally, one to three years’ experience  

6 

7 

8 

$158 

$172 

$179 

Fully Qualified Professional Position 
❑ Carries out assignments requiring general familiarity within a broad field of the respective profession 

❑ Makes decisions by using a combination of standard methods and techniques 

❑ Actively participates in planning to ensure the achievement of objectives 

❑ Works independently to interpret information and resolve difficulties 

❑ Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent 

❑ Generally, three to six years’ experience 

9 

10 

11 

$187 

$196 

$210 

First Level Supervisor or first complete Level of Specialization 
❑ Provides applied professional knowledge and initiative in planning and coordinating work programs  

❑ Adapts established guidelines as necessary to address unusual issues  

❑ Decisions accepted as technically accurate, however may on occasion be reviewed for soundness 

of judgment  

❑ Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent  

❑ Generally, five to nine years’ experience  

12 

13 

14 

$222 

$231 

$250 

Highly Specialized Technical Professional or Supervisor of groups of professionals 
❑ Provides multi-discipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of expertise  

❑ Participates in short- and long-range planning to ensure the achievement of objectives  

❑ Makes responsible decisions on all matters, including policy recommendations, work methods, and 

financial controls associated with large expenditures  

❑ Reviews and evaluates technical work  

❑ Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent  

❑ Generally, ten to fifteen years’ experience with extensive, broad experience  

15 

16 

17 

$263 

$280 

$289 

Senior Level Consultant or Management 
❑ Recognized as an authority in a specific field with qualifications of significant value  

❑ Provides multi-discipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of expertise  

❑ Independently conceives programs and problems for investigation  

❑ Participates in discussions to ensure the achievement of program and/or project objectives  

❑ Makes responsible decisions on expenditures, including large sums or implementation of major 

programs and/or projects  

❑ Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent  

❑ Generally, more than twelve years’ experience with extensive experience  

 

18 

19 

20 

21 

 

 

$290 

$300 

$311 

$330 

 

Senior Level Management under review by Vice President or higher 
❑ Recognized as an authority in a specific field with qualifications of significant value  

❑ Responsible for long range planning within a specific area of practice or region  

❑ Makes decisions which are far reaching and limited only by objectives and policies of the 

organization  

❑ Plans/approves projects requiring significant human resources or capital investment  

❑ Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent  

❑ Generally, fifteen years’ experience with extensive professional and management experience 

 

Survey Crews 

Crew Size 

1-Person 

2-Person 
3-Person 

Regular Rate 

$240 

$365 
$490 

Overtime Rate 

$295 

$475 
$655 

Expert Witness Services carry a 50% premium on labor.  Overtime may be charged at 1.5 times the standard billing rate.  All labor 

rates will be subject to annual increase. 

T-3 2024 CA 

 

17



This Agreement is made and entered into effective January 1, 2024 (the “Agreement Date”) by and between: 
  
“Client” 
  
Name: Client Company Name 
  
Address: Client street address, including city, prov/state and zip or post code 
    
Phone: Phone Number  extension here or delete 
  
Representative: Client representative and title Email: Email Address 
  
“Stantec” 
  
Name: Choose Stantec entity and click OK button 
  
Address: street address 
    
Phone: Phone Number  extension here or delete 
  
Representative: representative and title Email: Email Address 
  
Project Name (the “Project”): 
  
Enter project location and number 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:  Stantec shall render the services described in Attachment “A” (hereinafter called the “Services”) 

in accordance with this Agreement. Stantec may, at its discretion and at any stage, engage subconsultants to perform 

all or any part of the Services. The Client and Stantec by written amendment to this Agreement may from time to time 

make changes to the Services. All changed work shall be carried out under this Agreement. The time for completion of 

the Services shall be adjusted accordingly. 

COMPENSATION: Charges for the Services rendered will be made in accordance with the Contract Price indicated in 

Attachment “A”, or, if no Contract Price is indicated, in accordance with Stantec’s Schedule of Fees and Disbursements 

in effect from time to time as the Services are rendered. 

Invoices shall be paid by the Client in the currency of the jurisdiction in which the Services are provided without deduction 

or setoff within 28 days of receipt.  Failure to make any payment when due is a material breach of this Agreement and 

will entitle Stantec, at its option, to suspend or terminate this Agreement and the provision of the Services.  Interest will 

accrue on accounts overdue at the lesser of 1.5 percent per month (18 percent per annum) or the maximum legal rate 

of interest.  The Client will make electronic payment of the invoices, the details of which can be obtained or verified by 

contacting ar@stantec.com. 

Unless expressly defined in the scope of work attached to this Agreement, the Services do not include any services related 

to lawsuits, arbitrations, mediations, government enforcement actions, or freedom of information requests (“FOI”). The 

Client agrees to compensate Stantec on a time and materials basis at rates two times (2x) those identified in Stantec’s 

current rate table if Stantec is required to respond to a FOI, subpoena, serve as a witness, or prepare for or attend a 

deposition, examination for discovery, trial, arbitration, or mediation arising out of the Project or related to a legal 

proceeding to which Stantec is not a named defendant. 

REPRESENTATIVES:  Each party shall designate in the space provided above a representative who is authorized to act on 

behalf of that party and receive notices under this Agreement. Such representatives have complete authority to act on 

behalf of their principals in respect to all matters arising under this Agreement. 

NOTICES:  All notices, consents, and approvals required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be given to the 

representatives of each party. All notices required by this Agreement to be given by either party shall be deemed to be 

properly given and received within two (2) business days if made in writing to the other party by certified mail  or email, 

addressed to the regular business address of such party as identified above. 

CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES: The Client shall provide to Stantec in writing, the Client's total requirements in connection with 

the Project, including the Project budget and time constraints. The Client shall make available to Stantec all relevant 

information or data pertinent to the Project which is required by Stantec to perform the Services. Stantec shall be entitled 

to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of all information and data furnished by the Client, including information 

and data originating with other consultants employed by the Client whether such consultants are engaged at the request 

of Stantec or otherwise. Where such information or data originates either with the Client or its consultants then Stantec 

shall not be responsible to the Client for the consequences of any error or omission contained therein. 

When required by Stantec, the Client shall engage specialist consultants directly to perform items of work necessary to 

enable Stantec to carry out the Services. Whether arranged by the Client or Stantec, these services shall be deemed to 

be provided under direct contracts to the Client unless expressly provided otherwise. 

18

mailto:ar@stantec.com


The Client shall give prompt consideration to all documentation related to the Project prepared by Stantec and whenever 

prompt action is necessary shall inform Stantec of Client’s decisions in such reasonable time so as not to delay the 

schedule for providing the Services. 

When applicable, the Client shall arrange and make provision for Stantec’s entry to the Project site as well as other public 

and private property as necessary for Stantec to perform the Services. The Client shall obtain any required approvals, 

licenses and permits from governmental or other authorities having jurisdiction over the Project so as not to delay Stantec 

in the performance of the Services. 

STANTEC’S RESPONSIBILITIES: Stantec shall furnish the necessary qualified personnel to provide the Services. Stantec 

represents that it has access to the experience and capability necessary to and agrees to perform the Services with the 

reasonable skill and diligence required by customarily accepted professional practices and procedures normally 

provided in the performance of the Services at the time when and the location in which the Services were performed.  

This undertaking does not imply or guarantee a perfect Project and in the event of failure or partial failure of the product 

or the Services, Stantec will be liable only for its failure to exercise diligence, reasonable care, and professional skill. This 

standard of care is the sole and exclusive standard of care that will be applied to measure Stantec’s performance. There 

are no other representations or warranties expressed or implied made by Stantec. In particular, but not by way of 

limitation, no implied warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose shall apply to the Services provided 

by Stantec nor shall Stantec warrant or guarantee economic, market or financial conditions, proforma projections, 

schedules for public agency approvals, or other factors beyond Stantec’s reasonable control. Stantec does not warrant 

the Services to any third party and the Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Stantec from any demands, claims, suits, 

or actions of third parties arising out of Stantec’s performance of the Services. 

In performing the Services under this Agreement, Stantec shall operate as and have the status of an independent 

contractor and shall not act as or be an employee of the Client. 

TERMINATION:  Stantec may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days’ notice in writing. If either party 

breaches this Agreement, the non-defaulting party may terminate this Agreement after giving seven (7) days’ notice to 

remedy the breach. On termination of this Agreement, the Client shall forthwith pay Stantec for the Services performed 

to the date of termination. Non-payment by the Client of Stantec’s invoices within 30 days of Stantec rendering same is 

agreed to constitute a material breach of this Agreement and, upon written notice as prescribed above, the duties, 

obligations, and responsibilities of Stantec are terminated. 

SUSPENSION OF SERVICES:  If the project is suspended for more than thirty (30) calendar days in the aggregate, Stantec 

shall be compensated for services performed and charges incurred prior to receipt of notice to suspend and, upon 

resumption, an equitable adjustment in fees to accommodate the resulting demobilization and remobilization costs. In 

addition, there shall be an equitable adjustment in the project schedule based on the delay caused by the suspension. 

If the Project is suspended for more than ninety (90) days, Stantec may, at its option, terminate this agreement upon 

giving notice in writing to the Client. 

ENVIRONMENTAL:  Except as specifically described in this Agreement, Stantec’s field investigation, laboratory testing and 

engineering recommendations will not address or evaluate pollution of soil or pollution of groundwater. 

Where the Services include storm water pollution prevention (SWPP), sedimentation or erosion control plans, 

specifications, procedures or related construction observation or administrative field functions, Client acknowledges that 

such Services proposed or performed by Stantec are not guaranteed to provide complete SWPP, sedimentation or 

erosion control, capture all run off or siltation, that any physical works are to be constructed and maintained by the 

Client’s contractor or others and that Stantec has no control over the ultimate effectiveness of any such works or 

procedures. Except to the extent that there were errors or omissions in the Services provided by Stantec, Client agrees to 

indemnify and hold Stantec harmless from and against all claims, costs, liabilities, or damages whatsoever arising from 

any storm water pollution, erosion, sedimentation, or discharge of silt or other deleterious substances into any waterway, 

wetland or woodland and any resulting charges, fines, legal action, cleanup, or related costs. 

In the prosecution of work, Stantec will take reasonable precautions to avoid damage to subterranean structures or 

utilities. However, it is the responsibility of the Client to provide Stantec with assistance in locating underground structures 

and utilities in the vicinity of any construction, exploration, or investigation. Stantec shall also rely upon third party sources 

in order to determine the existence and location of any underground structures and utilities of any kind. The Client 

acknowledges and agrees that Stantec may rely on such third-party advice, so long as such third party is, in Stantec’s 

opinion, a reasonable source for such information, without any requirement that Stantec shall make an independent 

evaluation or investigation of such underground structures and utilities. In the event that the information supplied by third 

parties in incorrect, the Client acknowledges that Stantec shall not be responsible for any damages done to any such 

underground structures or utilities. If neither party can confirm the location of such structures and utilities, the Client agrees 

to accept all liabilities, costs, expenses and damages, whether direct, indirect, economic, punitive, incidental, special, 

exemplary or consequential, associated with the repair, replacement or restoration of any damages to such structures 

and utilities caused by Stantec or its subcontractor(s) or subconsultant(s) in the performance of the Services and the Client  

agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Stantec harmless from any such damages. 

19



BUILDING CODES, BYLAWS AND OTHER PUBLIC REGULATIONS: Stantec shall, to the best of its ability, interpret building codes, 

by-laws, and other public regulations as they apply to the Project and as they are published at the time Services 

commence. Furthermore, Stantec shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations 

of government agencies, including federal, state, provincial, municipal, and local governing bodies having jurisdiction 

over the conduct of the Services (“LAWS”). However, it is expressly acknowledged and agreed by the Client that as the 

Project progresses such building codes, by-laws, other public regulations, and LAWS may change or the interpretation of 

any public authority may differ from the interpretation of Stantec, through no fault of Stantec, and any extra costs 

necessary to conform to such changes or interpretations during or after execution of the Services will be paid by the 

Client. 

Stantec shall continue to provide equal employment opportunity to all qualified persons and to recruit, hire, train, promote 

and compensate persons in all jobs without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability or national origin or any 

other basis prohibited by applicable laws. 

COST AND SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION WORK: In providing opinions of probable cost and project schedule, it is 

recognized that neither the Client nor Stantec has control over the costs of labor, equipment, or materials, or over the 

Contractor’s methods of determining prices or time. The opinions of probable cost or project duration are based on 

Stantec’s reasonable professional judgment and experience and do not constitute a warranty, express or implied, that 

the Contractors’ bids, project schedules, or the negotiated price of the Work or schedule will not vary from the Client’s 

budget or schedule or from any opinion of probable cost or project schedule prepared by Stantec. Exact costs and times 

will be determined only when bids have been received for the Project and when the construction work has been 

performed and payments finalized. 

ADMINISTRATION OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS: When applicable, Stantec shall provide field services during the 

construction of the Project only to the extent that such Services are included and defined in this Agreement. The 

performance of the construction contract is not Stantec’s responsibility nor are Stantec’s field services rendered for the 

construction contractor's benefit. 

It is understood and agreed by the Client and Stantec that only work which has been seen during an examination by 

Stantec can be said to have been appraised and comments on the balance of any construction work are assumptions 

only. 

When field services are provided by Stantec, the authority for general administration of the Project shall reside with 

Stantec only to the extent defined in this Agreement. In such case, Stantec shall coordinate the activities of other 

consultants employed by the Client, only to the extent that Stantec is empowered to do so by such other consultants’ 

contracts with the Client. 

Stantec shall not be responsible for any contractor’s failure to carry out the work in accordance with the contract 

documents nor for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, any of their agents or employees, or any other 

persons performing any of the work in connection with the Project. When field services are provided, no acceptance by 

Stantec of the work or services of a construction contractor or other consultants, whether express or implied, shall relieve 

such construction contractor or other consultants from their responsibilities to the Client for the proper performance of 

such work or services and further, Stantec shall not be responsible to the Client or to the construction contractor or to the 

other consultants for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures and use of equipment of any nature 

whatsoever, whether reviewed by Stantec or not, which are employed by the construction contractor or the other 

consultants in executing, designing, or administering any phases of the Project, or for placing into operation any plant or 

equipment or for safety precautions and programs incidental thereto. 

When field services are provided, Stantec will not be designated as the party responsible for the compliance by others 

on the construction work site with the purposes or requirements of applicable environmental, occupational health and 

safety, or similar legislation. The Client shall designate a responsible party, other than Stantec, for the coordination and 

performance of environmental, occupational health and safety activities on the construction work site as required by 

applicable legislation and associated regulations. 

JOBSITE SAFETY: Neither the professional activities of Stantec, nor the presence of Stantec or its employees and 

subconsultants at a construction site, shall relieve the Client and any other entity of their obligations, duties and 

responsibilities with respect to job site safety. Subject only to applicable legislation, Stantec and its personnel have no 

authority to exercise any control over any construction contractor or other entity or their employees in connection with 

their work or any health or safety precautions. 

INDEMNITY: The Client releases Stantec from any liability and agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold Stantec harmless 

from any and all claims, damages, losses, and/or expenses, direct and indirect, or consequential damages, including but 

not limited to attorney’s fees and charges and court and arbitration costs, arising out of, or claimed to arise out of, the 

performance of the Services, excepting liability arising from the negligence or willful misconduct of Stantec. 

20



LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: It is agreed that, to the fullest extent possible under the applicable law, the total amount of all 

claims (including any and all costs associated with such claims such as attorney and expert fees and interest) the Client 

may have against Stantec under this Agreement or arising from the performance or non-performance of the Services 

under any theory of law, including but not limited to claims for negligence, negligent misrepresentation and breach of 

contract, shall be strictly limited to the lesser of the fees paid to Stantec for the Services or $500,000. No claim may be 

brought against Stantec in contract or tort more than two (2) years after the cause of action arose. As the Client’s sole 

and exclusive remedy under this Agreement any claim, demand or suit shall be directed and/or asserted only against 

Stantec and not against any of Stantec’s employees, officers, or directors. 

Stantec’s liability with respect to any claims arising out of this Agreement shall be absolutely limited to direct damages 

arising out of the Services and Stantec shall bear no liability whatsoever for any consequential loss, injury or damage 

incurred by the Client, including but not limited to claims for loss of use, loss of profits and loss of markets. 

In no event shall Stantec’s obligation to pay damages of any kind exceed its proportionate share of liability for causing 

such damages. 

DOCUMENTS:  All documents prepared by Stantec or on behalf of Stantec in connection with the Project are instruments 

of service for the execution of the Project. Stantec retains the property and copyright in these documents, whether the 

Project is executed or not. Payment to Stantec of the compensation prescribed in this Agreement shall be a condition 

precedent to the Client's right to use documentation prepared by Stantec. These documents may not be used for any 

other purpose without the prior written agreement of Stantec. The Client shall have a permanent non-exclusive, royalty-

free license to use any concept, product or process which is patentable or capable of trademark, produced by or 

resulting from the Services rendered by Stantec in connection with the Project, for the life of the Project. The Client shall 

not use, infringe upon, or appropriate such concepts, products or processes without the express written agreement of 

Stantec. In the event Stantec’s documents are subsequently reused or modified in any material respect without the prior 

consent of Stantec, the Client agrees to indemnify Stantec from any claims advanced on account of said reuse or 

modification. 

Any document produced by Stantec in relation to the Services is intended for the sole use of Client. The documents may 

not be relied upon by any other party without the express written consent of Stantec, which may be withheld at Stantec’s 

discretion. Any such consent will provide no greater rights to the third party than those held by the Client under the 

contract and will only be authorized pursuant to the conditions of Stantec’s standard form reliance letter. 

Stantec cannot guarantee the authenticity, integrity or completeness of data files supplied in electronic format 

(“Electronic Files”). Client shall release, indemnify, and hold Stantec, its officers, employees, consultants, and agents 

harmless from any claims or damages arising from the use of Electronic Files.  Electronic files will not contain stamps or 

seals, remain the property of Stantec, are not to be used for any purpose other than that for which they were transmitted, 

and are not to be retransmitted to a third party without Stantec’s written consent. 

PROJECT PROMOTION:  Where the Client has control or influence over construction signage, press releases and/or other 

promotional information identifying the project (“Project Promotion”), the Client agrees to include Stantec in such Project 

Promotion. 

FORCE MAJEURE:  Any default in the performance of this Agreement caused by any of the following events and without 

fault or negligence on the part of the defaulting party shall not constitute a breach of contract: labor strikes, riots, war,  

acts of governmental authorities, unusually severe weather conditions or other natural catastrophe, disease, epidemic or 

pandemic, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party. Nothing herein relieves 

the Client of its obligation to pay Stantec for services rendered. 

GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement shall be governed, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 

jurisdiction in which the majority of the Services are performed. 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION:  If requested in writing by either the Client or Stantec, the Client and Stantec shall attempt to resolve 

any dispute between them arising out of or in connection with this Agreement by entering into structured non-binding 

negotiations with the assistance of a mediator on a without prejudice basis.  The mediator shall be appointed by 

agreement of the parties.  The Parties agree that any actions under this Agreement will be brought in the appropriate 

court in the jurisdiction of Governing Law, or elsewhere by mutual agreement. Nothing herein however prevents Stantec 

from any exercising statutory lien rights or remedies in accordance with legislation where the project site is located.  

ATTORNEYS FEES:  In the event of a dispute hereunder, the prevailing party is entitled to recover from the other party all 

costs incurred by the prevailing party in enforcing this Agreement and prosecuting the dispute, including reasonable 

attorney’s and expert’s fees, whether incurred through formal legal proceedings or otherwise.  

ASSIGNMENT AND SUCCESSORS: The Client shall not, without the prior written consent of Stantec, assign the benefit or in 

any way transfer the obligations of this Agreement or any part hereof. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be 

binding upon the parties hereto, and except as otherwise provided herein, upon their executors, administrators, 

successors, and assigns. 

PROTECTION OF PRIVACY LAWS: The parties acknowledge that information relating to an identified or identifiable person 

(“Personal Information”) may be exchanged in the course of this Project pursuant to this Agreement. 

21



The party disclosing Personal Information (the “Disclosing Party”) warrants that is has all necessary authorizations and 

approvals required to process and disclose the Personal Information and to enable the party receiving the Personal 

Information (the “Receiving Party”) to process it in performing the Services. The Disclosing Party will provide the Receiving 

Party with written notice containing the details of what Personal Information will be provided. 

The Receiving Party will comply with any reasonable instruction from the Disclosing Party in respect of such Personal 

Information and implement appropriate technical and organization measures to protect the Personal Information against 

unauthorized or unlawful processing and accidental loss, theft, use, disclosure, destruction and/or damage. 

The Receiving Party shall be permitted, upon prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, to transfer Personal Information 

outside the jurisdiction if required for performance of the Services provided that such transfers are in accordance with 

relevant and applicable requirements under applicable legislation. The Receiving Party shall provide the Disclosing Party 

with full cooperation and assistance in meeting its obligations under applicable privacy legislation, including in relation 

to the security of processing, the notification of Personal Information breaches, the notification of requests from individuals 

and Personal Information protection impact assessments. 

On termination of this Agreement, the Receiving Party shall cease processing Personal Information and shall delete and 

destruct or return to the Disclosing Party (as the Disclosing Party may require) all Personal Information held or processed 

by the Receiving Party on the Disclosing Party’s behalf. It is understood however, that the Receiving Party may need to 

keep a copy of all Personal Information for legal purposes and therefore it will continue to take reasonable steps to protect 

the Personal Information as outlined herein and will proceed with the destruction of the Personal Information within a 

reasonable period of time if there is no longer any legal justification to keep the Personal Information. 

Nothing herein relieves either party from their responsibilities for compliance with applicable privacy legislation.  

ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the Client and Stantec relating 

to the Project and supersedes all prior agreements between them, whether written or oral respecting the subject matter 

hereof and no other terms, conditions, or warranties, whether express or implied, shall form a part hereof. This Agreement 

may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the Client and Stantec. All attachments referred to in this 

Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference; however, in the event of any conflict between attachments and 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall take precedence. 

SEVERABILITY:  If any term, condition, or covenant of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 

invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall be binding on the Client and Stantec. 

CONTRA PROFERENTEM: The parties agree that in the event this Agreement is subject to interpretation or construction by 

a third party, such third party shall not construe this Agreement or any part of it against either party as the drafter of this 

Agreement. 

BUSINESS PRACTICES: Each Party shall comply with all applicable laws, contractual requirements and mandatory or best 

practice guidance regarding improper or illegal payments, gifts or gratuities, and will not pay, promise to pay or authorize 

the payment of any money or anything of value, directly or indirectly, to any person (whether a government official or 

private individual) or entity for the purpose or illegally or improperly inducing a decision or obtaining or retaining business 

in connection with this Agreement or the Services. 

THE PARTIES EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS AGREEMENT CONTAINS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY PROVISIONS RESTRICTING 

RIGHTS FOR THE RECOVERY OF DAMAGES. 

 The Parties, intending to be legally bound, have made, accepted, and executed this Agreement as of the Agreement 

Date noted above. 

Client Company Name Choose Stantec entity and click OK button 

 

Name and Title of signor IF NOT KNOWN 

select delete to clear this field for 

printing.   Name and Title of signor 

 Print Name and Title   Print Name and Title 

Signature   Signature  

 

Name and Title of signor IF NOT KNOWN 

select delete to clear this field for 

printing.   Name and Title of signor 

 Print Name and Title 

  

  Print Name and Title 

Signature   Signature  

 

22



Attached to and forming part of the Agreement BETWEEN: 

Client Company Name 

(Hereinafter called the “Client”) 

- and - 

Choose Stantec entity and click OK button 

(Hereinafter called “Stantec”) 

EFFECTIVE: January 1, 2024 

This Attachment details the Services, Contract Time, Contract Price, Additional Conditions and Additional Attachments 

forming part of the above-described Agreement. 

SERVICES: Stantec shall perform the following Services: 

 [Click and  enter in any format the details you wish to use to express Scope of Services]  

 (Hereinafter called the “Services”) 

CONTRACT TIME: Commencement Date: [enter a date or statement of when the work will 

commence] 

 Estimated Completion Date: [enter a date or statement of estimated time of 

completion] 

CONTRACT PRICE: Subject to the terms below, Client will compensate Stantec as follows: 

[Click and  enter in any format fee and/or compensation details]  

An eight percent (8%) flat rate disbursement (FRD) recovery charge will be applied to the Stantec 

fees to cover miscellaneous project expenses, internal incidental printing, copying and plots, film, 

and report materials; communications expenses (e.g., faxes, office and cellular/mobile phones,  

and other devices); office expenses (e.g., postage, couriers, equipment, common software and 

other supplies); staff local mileage/kilometrage; and archive maintenance. As this is an FRD, no 

supporting document will be provided with invoices. 

Project specific charges, such as subconsultants; travel, accommodations, and meals; 

project-specific printing of deliverables; consumables; usage charges for specialized field 

equipment and company-owned, leased, or rented project vehicles; external testing lab 

charges and other external services charges; specialized computer software costs; and other 

significant project-specific expenses will be invoiced in addition to labor fees and to the FRD. 

 Where not stated as being included in the fees, project specific subconsultant, contractor, lab 

and other similar third-party charges will be charged as invoiced to Stantec with a ten percent 

(10%) markup. 

Unless otherwise noted, the fees in this agreement do not include any value added, sales, or 

other taxes that may be applied by Government on fees for services. Such taxes will be added 

to all invoices as required. 

Where the Services or services conditions change, Stantec shall submit to the Client in a timely 

manner, documentation of the revisions to Attachment “A” adjusting the Contract Services Time 

and Price as required. 

 Unless otherwise specified, charges for Services are based on Stantec’s hourly billing rate table 

(“Rate Table”), attached hereto.  The Rate Table is subject to escalation from time to time.  At a 

minimum, effective each January 1 during the term of this Agreement, Stantec’s charges for 

Services shall escalate by either (a) the most current Consumer Price Index year over year 

23



percentage increase, not seasonally adjusted, for the preceding July, all items, as published by 

Statistics Canada (for Projects in Canada) plus 1.0%, or (b) the most current Consumer Price 

Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) year over year percentage increase, not seasonally 

adjusted, for the preceding July, as published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics plus 1.0% (for 

all other projects). 

ADDITIONAL 

CONDITIONS: 

The following additional conditions shall be read in conjunction with and constitute part of this 

Agreement: 

 [Click and insert additional items. If none, type 'No additional conditions' or similar wording.]  

ADDITIONAL 

ATTACHMENTS: 

The following additional attachments shall be read in conjunction with and constitute part of this 

Agreement:  

 Rate Table 

Click here, if there are additional attachments enter them here, if no additional attachments hit 

Delete button and backspace once to end list above. 

 If attaching Insurance Certificate, IF REQUESTED, click here, type 'Insurance' and hit F3 button or 

Tab to insert the Insurance note, then delete the Insurance Requirements below. If not attaching 

certificate, select and delete this ROW. 

INSURANCE 

REQUIREMENTS: 

Before any services are provided under this agreement, Stantec shall procure, and maintain 

insurance coverage during the term of this agreement. 

 

24



 

 

Preliminary Proposal for: 

LOS OLIVOS WASTEWATER 
TRANSPORT SYSTEM 

ENGINEERING SERVICES – 2024 
 

Los Olivos, CA 
September 9th, 2024 

Rev 1.1 
 

Prepared for: 

Los Olivos Services District 
 

Prepared by: 

Regen AEC, PLLC 
217 S 11th St 

Boise, Id 83702 
(541) 580-2980 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

25



       Regen AEC   

   

Table of Contents 

INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................. 1 

Services ........................................................................................................................................................ 1 

PROJECT SCOPE & APPROACH ............................................................................................................ 2 

Scope of Work .............................................................................................................................................. 2 
Preliminary Analysis and Basis of Design (BOD) ................................................................................................................ 2 
30 Percent Hybrid Wastewater Collection Design & Evaluation ....................................................................................... 2 

30 Percent Design GIS Mapping .................................................................................................................................... 2 
30 Percent Design Plans ................................................................................................................................................ 2 
30 Percent Design Capital, Operation & Maintenance Cost Estimating ....................................................................... 2 
Utility Review & Recommendations ............................................................................................................................. 2 
Value Engineering Recommendations ............................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Approach ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 
Preliminary Analysis and BOD (Days 1-90) ........................................................................................................................ 3 
30 Percent Hybrid Collection System Design & Evaluation (Days 90-120) ........................................................................ 3 

Project Schedule ........................................................................................................................................... 3 
Time of Performance from Contract Signing ..................................................................................................................... 3 

FIRM CAPABILITIES & EXPERIENCE ..................................................................................................... 4 

Project Team ................................................................................................................................................ 4 
Project Principal ................................................................................................................................................................. 4 
Key Engineer ...................................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Key Partner ........................................................................................................................................................................ 5 
Key Partner ........................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

ENGINEERING COMPENSATION .......................................................................................................... 6 

APPENDIX A (RESUMES) ..................................................................................................................... 7 

APPENDIX B (INSURANCE) .................................................................................................................. 8 

APPENDIX C (REFERENCES) ....................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

APPENDIX D (DRAFT FEE SCHEDULE) ........................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 
 
 

26



       Regen AEC   

   

September 9th, 2024 
 
Attn: Guy Savage 
 
Los Olivos Services District 
PO Box 345 
Los Olivos, CA 93441 
 
Re:  Request for Proposal, Engineering Services, Wastewater Collection Transport System Design for 
Los Olivos, CA 
 
Dear Mr. Savage: 
 
We are pleased to provide this proposal for preliminary design and analysis of the Los Olivos 
wastewater collection system alternatives as describe below.  
 
The attached proposal outlines our preliminary qualifications and scope of work. Tristian Bounds will be 
the authorized representative responsible for negotiations and signing of any contract which may result 
from acceptance of this proposal.  
 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact us. We look forward to working with you. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Tristian Bounds, PE      
Principal Engineer and Owner - Regen AEC 

27



    Regen AEC                      Wastewater Collection Transport Proposal, Los Olivos, CA 

1 
September 9th, 2024 – Los Olivos    

INTRODUCTION 
We appreciate the opportunity to be considered for the Los Olivos Sewer System Design Service. Regen 
works directly with our clients to identify the project requirements and fundamentals, developing 
designs and solutions using the latest technologies and processes as proven from our experience, to 
maximize cost-effectiveness, and cradle-to-cradle sustainability. 
 
Regen is committed to the protection and reuse of our water resources. The collection, treatment, and 
reuse of treated water has been a focus of our research and development for years.  

Services 
The project will include engineering services as described in the tasks below. This effort will determine 
an alternative wastewater collection system approach including conceptual feasibility and costs. Regen 
proposes to develop a Basis of Design Report and preliminary collection transport system design with 
connection to Solvang. 
 
With the knowledge accumulated over decades of research, design, and specification, Regen has worked 
to utilizes GIS information to estimate collection systems layouts, equipment, and accurately estimate 
the current costs for installation of selected collection equipment.  
 
We will evaluate a sewer configuration that will be a viable and sustainable solution for the collection 
and transport of Los Olivos wastewaters to a single location near Solvang and meet all California 
and/or Federal requirements.

28



    Regen AEC                      Wastewater Collection Transport Proposal, Los Olivos, CA 

2 
September 9th, 2024 – Los Olivos    

PROJECT SCOPE & APPROACH 
The scope for the Los Olivos wastewater collection system transport design will include a Basis for 
Design, 30 Percent Collection Transport Line Design including GIS based mapping, Capital Expenditure 
Estimations, and Operations and Maintenance Expenditure Estimates, Utility Review & 
Recommendations, and Value Engineering Recommendations.  

Scope of Work 
Preliminary Analysis and Basis of Design (BOD) 
Los Olivos Collection Transport System Design Basis of Design will include the following: 

1. Evaluation of known factors from previous engineering work 
2. Hydraulic and biologic load analysis 
3. Right Of Way, Easement, bridge and/or Property crossings evaluation 
4. Conceptual collection transport system design configuration 

30 Percent Wastewater Collection Transport Design  
The wastewater collection transport system design will focus on collection system layouts, hydraulic 
grade line analysis, capital and operational expenditures, design drawings and specifications to allow for 
evaluation.  

30 Percent Design GIS Mapping 
Geographic Information System mapping will be provided identifying all pertinent boundaries, 
horizontal building footprints, and equipment placement. ESRI software will be utilized to provide as 
detailed information as available.  

30 Percent Design Plans 
We will develop 30 percent wastewater collection transport system design plans utilizing the BOD and 
previous data made available. The design will incorporate mapping provided through ESRI software and 
additional software developed for wastewater collection system design. Regen will incorporate the 
following into the design plans: 

1. Best practice routing of low-pressure liquid only effluent sewer lines 
2. Hydraulic Models of effluent sewer 
3. Details of right-of-way line installation 
4. Prepare a 30 percent preliminary wastewater collection system plan set in AutoCAD format.  
5. The plans will include all recommended sizing of collection tanks, laterals, main lines, and 

auxiliary equipment.  

30 Percent Design Capital Cost Estimating 
Capital cost estimating will be organized based on a Class IV feasibility study estimate. Regen will work 
with the district to provide accurate cost estimating based on equipment and local contractors estimating 
for main lines. We will utilize the estimates provide in the previous gravity sewer design for the adjusted 
gravity sewer estimating.  

Utility Review & Recommendations 
Regen will work with the District to utilize all data, utility research, and base mapping information 
provided by previous work. This is assumed to include: as-built drawings, County Road basemaps, USA 
Dig Alert as-bult data, utility basemap information, and additional project constraints or features that 

29



    Regen AEC                      Wastewater Collection Transport Proposal, Los Olivos, CA 

3 
September 9th, 2024 – Los Olivos    

may impact the design of the collection system. An additional evaluation of proximity of drinking water 
lines to proposed hybrid collection solution wastewater lines will be conducted.  

Approach 
Preliminary Analysis and BOD (Days 1-90) 
Kick-off meetings will establish a common focus, identify, and understand major constraints, 
confirm the overall project scope, establish communication plan, agree on major reference data, 
establish priority list, and confirm overall schedule. The kick-off meetings and detailed team 
briefings will involve the core team and others as required and approved. 
 
The main activities planned for this stage are:   

1. Develop the Basis of Design.  
2. Complete engineering preliminary design (15%) and system layouts in sufficient 

detail for rough estimating purposes. 
3. Undertake technical audits throughout the design process. 

30 Percent Collection Transport System Design & Evaluation (Days 90-120) 
This Stage is a production exercise, in which the preliminary design of the collection transport 
system is finalized through the design, specification, and technical documentation. 
 
The main activities planned for this Stage are: 

1. Complete wastewater collection transport system engineering preliminary design 
(30%) and system layouts in sufficient detail for estimating purposes and prepare 
materials takeoffs. 

2. Prepare technical documentation and issue enquiries for all major equipment for the 
purposes of developing the capital cost estimates. 

3. Commence capital cost estimates. 
4. Review existing utilities and conflicts that will require resolution with collection 

system.  
5. Undertake technical audits throughout the design process. 

Project Schedule 
Time of Performance from Contract Signing 
Estimated timeframe for phased engineering work 

1. Kick-off Meeting & BOD Evaluation Period     60 days 
2. Preliminary Configuration & Rubric Creation (15%) Design:  90 Days 
3. Draft Design (30%):        90 Days 
4. Technical Documentation & Cost Estimating (30%):    120 Days 

 

30



    Regen AEC                      Wastewater Collection Transport Proposal, Los Olivos, CA 

4 
September 9th, 2024 – Los Olivos    

FIRM CAPABILITIES & EXPERIENCE 
This Regen led team are consulting firms dedicated to helping small communities integrate 
sustainable wastewater infrastructure into their neighborhoods. Our people have the passion, 
the drive, and the creativity to produce high quality work effectively and efficiently. We deliver 
highly technical water and wastewater planning, design, and construction management services 
for public and private clients across the West Coast.  
 
For the Los Olivos collection transport system design, the teams of Regen AEC will develop 
accurate evaluations of collection systems. Regens teams experience is unique to wastewater 
consulting, from collection to dispersal or reuse. The team brings over 100 years of experience 
delivering sustainable wastewater projects to small communities around the world. The skills 
acquired during this time were gained by performing facility planning, feasibility evaluations, 
full designs, and design reviews of proposed wastewater systems from many of the best 
engineering firms in the world. These designs include evaluation of the four different types of 
wastewater collection, and a myriad of different wastewater treatment processes that ranged 
from simple facultative lagoons to complex Membrane Bio Reactors. Designs have included 
wastewater collection layout, and sizing, along with treatment facility configuration and sizing, 
and dispersal or reuse systems to meet varied discharge requirements from around the world. 
Through the years, the Regen team has witnessed the absolute best designs as well as some of 
the worst – we have seen it all, learned from the best, and utilized that experience in all our 
design services.   
 
Each team member is experienced in both presentation and community outreach and can 
present relevant information in a concise and easily understood way. These skills have been 
honed through presenting at major conferences around the world, presenting in public 
hearings, and engaging in local meetings.  

Project Team  
Project Principal 
Principal, Regen AEC, LLC – Tristian Bounds, P.E. 
Tristian is the owner and principal of Regen AEC, PLLC, the premier decentralized wastewater 
design firm in Boise, Idaho. He has over 20 years of experience in the wastewater engineering 
and reuse fields and provides design services to scores of districts, developers, and clients.  
Having been responsible for facility planning, engineering design, construction oversight, 
operations and maintenance and system troubleshooting on systems throughout the North 
America, the Middle East, Central & South Americas, the Caribbean and Pacific Islands. His 
expertise is in equipment analysis, specification, and design, with many years of experience 
designing and installing systems in difficult situations such as extreme climates, high 
groundwater, or nutrient sensitive water bodies, and overseas.  
 
After moving to Boise Idaho in 2017 Tristian partnered with local architects and engineers to 
develop Regen AEC. Together, the Regen team has specialized in planning, permitting, design 
and specification, and construction oversight of projects in various parts of the world.  
 
Key Role: Tristian will act as Project Manager and will be the main contact for the project. 
Tristian will be heavily involved in all aspects of the study, including working directly with 
community members, managers, key staff, and consultants to ensure the best result possible.  

31



    Regen AEC                      Wastewater Collection Transport Proposal, Los Olivos, CA 

5 
September 9th, 2024 – Los Olivos    

 
Key Engineer 
Design Engineer, Contracted under Regen AEC – Terry Bounds, PE 
Terry has over 50 years in the wastewater industry, many of which have been focused on helping to 
guide small communities secure sustainable wastewater solutions. Terry spent fourteen years as a 
special studies engineer for the Douglas County, Oregon, Public Works Department. During that time, 
he worked on a wide variety of engineering projects, most notably the pioneering 2,300-unit effluent 
sewer (STEP/STEG) system in Glide, Oregon. He did much of the research that led to the decision to 
use STEP/STEG technology at Glide, and then designed the community’s collection and treatment 
system. Terry currently oversees all operations and management of the Glide Sewer System. 
 
In the early 1980’s, Terry became an owner of Orenco Systems Inc., a Roseburg, Oregon, company 
created to design and manufacture carefully engineered equipment for onsite treatment systems and 
decentralized effluent collection systems. Terry is arguably the single most well-versed engineer in the 
world with respect to effluent sewer design.  
 
Key Role: Terry will act as Civil Engineer of Record and will assist the project manager in the 
development of design drawings, specifications, and technical documents.  

Key Partner 
President, Digital Infrastructure – Bill Cagle 
Principal and senior level project manager with over 30 years of experience in municipal projects. Bill is 
well acquainted with the special needs of municipalities. He specializes in water and wastewater 
implementation and strategy, plan reviews, collection system software development, and public and 
private wastewater system funding. Bill has extensive experience working for municipalities as a 
consultant and working as a public employee.  
 
Key Role: Bill will aid with the use of GIS software for development of best path analysis for collection 
system alternatives as well as assist the project manager in the development of value engineering rubric 
and recommendations.  

Key Partner 
GIS Specialist & Designer, Digital Infrastructure – Chris Jordan 
Senior level special projects manager with over 35 years of experience in GIS and design of wastewater 
system. Chris has extensive experience in design and drafting of wastewater collection, treatment, and 
dispersal systems.  
 
Key Role: Chris will aid with the use of GIS software for development of best path analysis for 
collection system alternatives as well as assist in the development of design drawings and 
specifications. 
 

32



    Regen AEC                      Wastewater Collection Transport Proposal, Los Olivos, CA 

6 
September 9th, 2024 – Los Olivos    

ENGINEERING COMPENSATION 
The client will compensate engineer for the work specified above. Costs shall constitute complete 
compensation for all direct labor, payroll burden, general and administrative overhead, profit, travel, 
equipment, and materials necessary to complete the tasks as set forth in the Scope of Work. Fees 
associated with application and permitting are not included.  
 
Compensation for initial Scope of Work not to exceed: 
1. Preliminary Sewer Analysis and Development of BOD:                    $22,000 
2. 30 Percent Analysis & Design:                            $28,000 
 
Our proposed compensation is a fixed price contract sum of Seventy Thousand dollars ($50,000).  
 
Our fees do not include permitting costs or industry standard reimbursable costs such as project 
printing, renderings requested by the owner, travel above maximum proposed trips, and requested 
changes to the project scope once the design and documentation have been accepted. For those 
items that are determined to be reimbursable, we will invoice them at 1.10 times the amount from 
the vendor. 
 
Best Regards, 

 
Tristian Bounds, PE 
Regen AEC 
tristianb@regenaec.com 

33



    Regen AEC                      Wastewater Collection Transport Proposal, Los Olivos, CA 

7 
September 9th, 2024 – Los Olivos    

APPENDIX A (RESUMES) 
NATHAN TRISTIAN BOUNDS, P.E. 
REGEN AEC, PLLC ⏐ (541) - 580 - 2980 ⏐ tristianb@regenaec.com  

QUALIFICATIONS 
Accomplished civil engineer with significant experience in water and wastewater collection and 
treatment. Background includes developing new treatment process and equipment, as well as 
designing state-of-the-art treatment facilities. Developed engineering work experience in a high-
tech manufacturing environment. Skilled in staff supervision, collection and treatment systems 
design, system troubleshooting, technical evaluation, and construction oversight. Experience with 
customer service, technical sales, international development, and interpersonal social skills.  

LICENSE  
Professional Engineering License (P.E.) 

● State of Oregon, U.S.A. #74747 (December, 2007) 
● State of Washington, U.S.A. #47965 (March, 2011) 
● State of Utah, U.S.A. #10094202-2202 (September, 2016) 
● State of Idaho, U.S.A. #P-18483 (February, 2019) 
● State of Texas, U.S.A. #141071 (February, 2021) 
● State of Arizona, U.S.A. #78692 (June, 2023) 
● State of New Mexico, U.S.A. (August, 2023) 

EXPERIENCE RECORD 
Principal & Founder 
1-1-2019 to Present | Regen AEC, PLLC.| 213 S 11th St., Boise, ID 83702  

Character of Work:   
● High Performance environmental engineering, wastewater collection and treatment systems design, 

nitrogen reduction facilities, facility planning; project cost estimating, sustainable wastewater infrastructure 
specifications, grey water treatment and reuse, blackwater reuse, underground vessel design, and other 
engineering-related functions including civil engineering, structural engineering, microbiology, etc.  

Tasks: 
● Complete engineering design, specification, and inspection. 
● Specializing in sustainable systems design including alternative materials, energy sources, and water reuse. 
● Construction Management. 
● Develop facility plans. 
● Specializing in difficult wastewater collection system analysis.  
● Provide construction oversight and facilitate commissioning of systems as well as operation and 

maintenance assistance and process troubleshooting. 

Research and Development Engineer 
1-5-2000 to Present ⏐ Orenco System Inc.⏐ 814 Airway Avenue, Sutherlin, OR 97479.  

Character of Work:   
● Special studies, Water Reuse process and product design, Nitrogen Process and product design, Product 

Development.  
Tasks: 
● Manage Process Research and Development Projects. 
● Develop new processes for wastewater treatment. 
● Develop new equipment for wastewater treatment, wastewater collection, water treatment, and storm water 

treatment. 

34



 Regen AEC Wastewater Collection Transport Proposal, Los Olivos, CA 

8 
September 9th, 2024 – Los Olivos 

APPENDIX B (INSURANCE) 

35




